
Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda 

January 14, 2019 
6:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – David Phillips, Vestavia Hills Chaplin 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance  

5. Proclamation – Alabama Bicentennial – 2019 

6. City Manager’s Report 

7. Councilors’ Reports 

8. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 

9. Approval of Minutes – December 10, 2018 (Regular Meeting), December 17, 2018 (Work 

Session) and December 17, 2018 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

New Business 

10. Resolution Number 5119 - A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For Rayburn 

Hospitality Vestavia Hills LLC D/B/A Mugshots Grill And Bar Vestavia Hills For A 020-

Restaurant Retail Liquor License; 1919 Kentucky Avenue, Suite 101; Derrick Clifton 

Rayburn, Executive   (public hearing) 

11. Ordinance Number 2825 – An Ordinance Adopting And Enacting Supplement III For The 

Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances, Republished 2013 Providing For The Repeal Of 

Certain Ordinances Not Included Therein And Providing For A Penalty For The Violation 

There; And Providing When Such Supplements And This Ordinance Shall Become 

Effective 

New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

12. Ordinance Number 2817 – Rezoning – 3791 Poe Drive; That Part Of Lot 1, Overton 

Village Resurvey Which Lies In The Vestavia Hills Corporate Limits; Rezone From 

Vestavia Hills B-2 (General Business District) To VH R-9 (Planned Residential District); 

Overton Condos, LLC, Mark Perlman, Owners   (public hearing) 



13. Ordinance Number 2818 – Rezoning – 3771 And 3783 Fairhaven Drive; Lots 24, 25, 31 

And 32, Block 1, Glass Addition To New Merkle; Rezone From Vestavia Hills INST 

(Institutional District) To Vestavia Hills R-9 (Planned Residential District); Overton 

Investments, LLC, Owners   (public hearing) 

14. Ordinance Number 2819 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3421 Coventry Drive; Lot 6, 

Block 2, Coventry, 1st And 2nd Sector; Barbara French, Owner   (public hearing) 

15. Ordinance Number 2820 – Rezoning - 3421 Coventry Drive; Lot 6, Block 2, Coventry, 1st 

And 2nd Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 (Medium Density Residential District) 

To Vestavia Hills R-2 (Medium Density Residential District); Barbara French, Owner   

(public hearing) 

16. Ordinance Number 2821 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3531 Valley Circle; Lot 6, Block 

1, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Alan And Patricia Foster, Owners   (public hearing) 

17. Ordinance Number 2822 – Rezoning – 3531 Valley Circle; Lot 6, Block 1, Dolly Ridge 

Estates, 2nd Add; Rezone from Jefferson County R-1 (Medium Density Residential 

District) To Vestavia Hills R-2 (Medium Density Residential District); Alan And Patricia 

Foster, Owners   (public hearing) 

18. Ordinance Number 2823 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2532 Skyland Drive; Lot 8, Block 

2, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Jason And Laura Sparks, Owners   (public hearing) 

19. Ordinance Number 2824 – Rezoning – 2532 Skyland Drive; Lot 8, Block 2, Dolly Ridge 

Estates, 2nd Add; Rezone from Jefferson County R-1 (Medium Density Residential 

District) To Vestavia Hills R-2 (Medium Density Residential District); Jason And Laura 

Sparks, Owners   (public hearing) 

20. Citizen Comments      

21. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2018 

Page 1 
 

 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

DECEMBER 10, 2018 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Curry called the meeting to 
order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  

Mayor Ashley C. Curry  
Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor 

      Paul Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Cinnamon McCulley, Communication Specialist 
 

Steve Dedmon, Vestavia Hills Chaplin, led the invocation followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed John Henley to the meeting representing the Vestavia Hills Chamber 
of Commerce Board. 

 Mr. Pierce also congratulated Mr. Henley on his efforts toward the annual Breakfast with 
Santa which was held last weekend with the largest crowd ever. 

 Mr. Head welcomed Park and Recreation Board members that were present at the meeting:  
Earl Lawson and Anne Smyth.  He also thanked Mrs. Smyth for her time and effort on the 
Park Board.  The Mayor echoed those sentiments. 

 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2018 

Page 2 
 

 
PRESENTATION – EXCEPTIONAL FOUNDATION 

 
 Tricia Kirk thanked the Mayor and Council for continued support for their members, 60 
of which are residents of Vestavia Hills.  She stated that giving back to these individuals with 
special needs and their families are so special. 
 
 

PROCLAMATION – HUMAN TRAFFICKING MONTH 
 
 The Mayor presented a proclamation designating January 2019 as “Human Trafficking 
Month.”  Mr. Downes read the proclamation aloud and the Mayor presented it to to Tachandra 
“Shun” Bell and Rebecca Hartsough. 
 
 The Mayor stated that he and the VHPD take human trafficking seriously.  Ms. Hartsough 
thanked the Mayor and Council for the support as well as the proclamation.  This helps to assist 
these victims who are often trafficked along the interstates.  Ms. Bell stated that they work with 
UAB to help these young women to get tested and begin getting back to as normal life as possible. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes stated that the City will begin studying various intersections throughout the 
City with the adoption of a Resolution that’ll be presented at the next meeting.  He 
explained that the City plans to submit an application for an APPLE grant to look at eleven 
different areas that are at the top of the list of complaints to deal with some of these 
repeated complaints.  He stated the eleven areas include:  (1) Dolly Ridge and Rocky 
Ridge Road; (2) Sicard Hollow Road and Blue Lake Drive; (3) Shades Crest, Rocky Ridge 
and Highway 280; (4) Highway 31 and Shades Crest Road; .(5) Highway 31 and 
Columbiana Road; (6) Highway 31 and Old Creek Trail and Leona Way; (7) Columbiana 
Road, Shades Crest and Vestaview; (8) Pedestrian access across from City Hall at Sprouts; 
(9) Highway 31 and Pizitz Drive; (10) River Run Drive and River Run Trail; and (11) 
Jacobs Road and Massey Road.  He stated that the Engineering Department has identified 
these problem area and this APPLE grant would set the stage for a course of improvements 
over time.  He stated he will ask the Communication Specialist to post this on the website 
for information to the public.  He stated this will be considered for action at the next 
meeting. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mr. Pierce stated that the Chamber luncheon is tomorrow at Vestavia Country Club. 
 The Mayor indicated that he noticed some paving work on Tyler.  Mr. Downes stated that 

work has begun on the City’s annual paving projects and will move from Jacobs, to the 
Sunset area shortly which has been ravaged by utility cuts. 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2018 

Page 3 
 

 Mr. Head stated that the Park and Recreation Board Work Session begins at 11:30 on 
Thursday in the Executive Conference Room at City Hall. 

 Mr. Pierce asked about the status of the repairs on Massey Road.  Mr. Brady explained 
that there are two projects underway for that roadway.  He stated that the funding 
appropriated by the grant funding is in structural design and ALDOT review.  Once 
completed it should be bid at that time. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the following meeting was presented for approval:  November 19, 2018 
(Work Session), November 26, 2018 (Regular Meeting) and November 28, 2018 (Work Session). 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the November 19, 2018 

(Work Session) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second by 
Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the November 26, 2018 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second 
by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the November 28, 2018 

(Work Session) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second by 
Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5112 
 

Resolution Number 5112 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For the Green Valley Sidewalk 
Addition Project (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5112 was by Mr. Pierce seconded by Mr. 

Weaver. 
 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2018 

Page 4 
 

 Mr. Downes stated that this is a budgeted sidewalk project which was recently sent out 
for bid along Green Valley Road.  He showed a detail of the location and explained the proposed 
sidewalk project.  This resolution will accept the lowest and most responsible bidder for this 
sidewalk project, Triple J Construction. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that there is quite a bit of difference among the bidders. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated that some of the difference was related to drainage piping and they feel 
confident that the bid is a good one. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5113 
 

Resolution Number 5113 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Vestavia Hills 
To Address Certain Cahaba Beach Road Extension Alternatives Being 
Considered By The Alabama Department Of Transportation 

 
 Mayor Curry read the proposed Resolution in its entirety.  Mr. Downes presented ALDOT 
alternatives for Cahaba Beach Road to the audience. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5112 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Weaver. 
 
 Mrs. Cook made the following statement: 
 

“I am glad that we are going to get to vote on this resolution tonight. I am 
concerned about potential environmental impacts and threats to public safety, as 
these options are predicted to put as many as 12,000 cars/day (an increase of about 
8,000 cars/day) on Sicard Hollow Road, intersecting Sicard Hollow at a location 
that is very near two of our city schools. I have heard from more than 400 of my 
constituents and 94% of them disapprove of the project altogether. 90% of them, 
when asked which option they preferred, selected the No Build option. For these 
reasons, I support this resolution.” 

 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2018 

Page 5 
 

 The following individuals spoke in support of the Resolution and in opposition to 
ALDOT’s proposed construction and realignment of Cahaba Beach Road: 
 

 Patrick Dewees, 3048 Asbury Park Place;  
 Sarah Stokes, Southern Environmental Law Center;  
 Beth Stewart, Cahaba River Society, Cahaba River Society; 
 Dave Butler, Cahaba River Keeper, Staff Attorney 

 
Citizen feedback and suggestions included the following:  

 Place a 15-year moratorium on development in the area. 
 Increase investment in mass transit. 
 Protect the sources of our drinking water. 
 Environmental groups urged the Council to oppose all Cahaba Beach Road 

alternatives. 
 ALDOT has indicated that this roadway will not solve the traffic problems along 

Highway 280. 
 ALDOT has planned this roadway, providing little or no information to the general 

public. 
 The conservation lands affected by the project were purchased with public money; 

if ALDOT is allowed to move forward with the project, it defeats the purpose of 
placing conservation protections on the land in the first place. 

 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5114 
 

Resolution Number 5114 - A Resolution Appointing A Member To The Vestavia Hills 
Library Board 

 
 The Mayor passed the gavel to Mayor Pro-Tem Weaver so, as Liaison to the Library 
Board, he could speak to the motion. 
 
 Mayor Pro-Tem Weaver opened the floor for a motion of Resolution Number 5114. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5114 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 The Mayor stated that several individuals were interviewed by the Council and there are 
two Library Board vacancies to fill.  His first nominee is April Marie Jackson-MacLennan. 
 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2018 

Page 6 
 

MOTION Motion to amend Resolution Number 5114 to add the name of April Marie 
Jackson-MacLennan as the appointment to the Vestavia Hills Library Board was 
made by Mayor Curry and second was by Mrs. Cook.  Roll call vote as follows:   

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5115 
 

Resolution Number 5115 - A Resolution Appointing A Member To The Vestavia Hills 
Library Board 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5115 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 Mayor Curry stated that he nominates Gregory K. Laughlin to fill this second upcoming 
vacancy. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend Resolution Number 5115 to add the name of Gregory K. 

Laughlin as the appointment to the Vestavia Hills Library Board was made by 
Mayor Curry and second was by Mrs. Cook.  Roll call vote as follows:   

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem returned the gavel to the Mayor. 
 
 The Mayor thanked the individuals who submitted applications to the Library Board.  
He stated that the choices were difficult but he feels both of these members will be welcome 
assets to the Board.  He pointed out that both of these individuals have applied in previous years 
and were finally selected this year.   
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2018 

Page 7 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5116 
 

Resolution Number 5116 - A Resolution Appointing A Member To The Vestavia Hills Parks 
And Recreation Board 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5116 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Head. 
 
 Mr. Head stated that he nominates Lyles Box to fill this new appointment on the Parks 
and Recreation Board. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend Resolution Number 5116 to add the name of Lyles Box as the 

appointment to the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board was made by Mr. 
Head and second was by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows:   

   Mrs. Cook – no   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – no   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 
 The Mayor stated that the next item required unanimous consent for the immediate 
consideration and action on the agenda.  He opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for immediate consideration and action on the 

Resolution Number 5118 was made by Mr. Weaver and second was by Mr. Pierce.  
Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5118 
 

Resolution Number 5118 – A Resolution Declaring An Emergency And Authorizing The 
City Manager To Replace The Emergency Power Generator That Serves The 
Vestavia Hills James F. Wyatt Fire Station Number 5 And The Cahaba 
Heights Police Substation At A Cost Not To Exceed $18,000  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5118 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook. 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2018 

Page 8 
 

 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is a generator that caught fire and was destroyed located at 
Vestavia Hills James F. Wyatt Fire Station 5.  He stated that this needs to be replaced as soon as 
possible and should be declared as an emergency situation in order to keep the fire station 
functional. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented at a 
public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on December 17, 2018, at 6:00 PM. 

 Ordinance Number 2810 – Rezoning – 4517 Pine Tree Circle; Rezone From Vestavia 
Hills R-1 (Low Density Residential District) To VH O-1 (Office District); Mark Hancock, 
Hancock Construction, Owner   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2811 – Conditional Use Approval – 2301 Old Columbiana Road; 
Conditional Use Approval For Outdoor Recreation; The Property Is Currently Zoned 
Vestavia Hills B-2 (General Business District) With Restrictions; Richard Pennino, 
(public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2812 – An Ordinance To Partner With The CoachSafely Foundation 
Pursuant To The Coach Safety Act, Also Known As Act Number 2018-496 As Adopted 
By The Alabama Legislature, 2018 Regular Session And Authorizing A Partnership 
Between The CoachSafely Foundation And The City Of Vestavia Hills Parks And 
Recreation Department    (public hearing)  

 Ordinance Number 2813 – An Ordinance To Rescind Ordinance Number 2627 And 
Article XI, Section 8-281 Thru 8-293 Of The Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances Relating 
To Licenses And Regulation Of Transportation Network Companies (“TNC”)    (public 
hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2814 – An Ordinance To Adopt Regulations For Small Cell 
Technology Facilities In The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama    (public hearing) 

 An Ordinance To Establish A Fee Structure For Small Cell Technology Facilities In The 
City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama As Established By Ordinance Number 2814   (public 
hearing) 

 An Ordinance To Establish A Fee Structure For Small Cell Technology Facilities In The 
City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama As Established By Ordinance Number 2814   (public 
hearing) 

 Resolution Number 5117 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Agreement For Services With The Regional Planning Commission Of Greater 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2018 

Page 9 
 

Birmingham For An Apple Grant For “Vestavia Hills Traffic Operations Study Phase 1”    
(public hearing) 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 John Henley, 1823 Mission Road, thanked the Council for sponsoring the Breakfast with 
Santa again this year.  He stated over 450 people were served during the event which made it the 
largest breakfast they’ve ever had.  He thanked Brian Davis and Jason Burnett for their services 
to set up, cooking, etc.  He also thanked the several volunteers that helped in the endeavor 
including Mr. Downes and his son, the Vestavia Hills Beautification Board, the Vestavia Central 
Rockettes, the Vestavia Belles and many others. 
 
 Mrs. Cook thanked Mr. Henley for his efforts in continuing the event. 
 
 Brian Moore, 913 Mountain Branch Drive, stated that his 14-month old daughter had a 
seizure and his wife had to perform CPR.  He thanked the VHFD and VHPD for prompt response.  
He stated his daughter is doing well and he is thankful for the services that this City provides 
along with the heroic efforts of his wife in performing emergency CPR before they arrived. 
 
 
 At 6:31 PM, Mr. Weaver made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:57 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

DECEMBER 17, 2018 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regular work session on this date at 
5:00 PM following posting/publication as required by Alabama law.  The Mayor called the 
meeting to order and the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry  

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor 

      Paul J. Head, Councilor 
George Pierce, Councilor 

 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick Boone, City Attorney 
 Dr. Todd Freeman, Vestavia Hills 

Superintendent of Education 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
 

 
The Mayor called the meeting to order. 

 
 

UPDATE FROM BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
 Dr. Freeman updated the Council on the proposed ordinance that will be considered 
later this evening at the meeting, to continue to allow the Board of Education to use a 3.15 
mill property tax for operational purposes.  He explained that the Board will be considering 
construction loans to finance needed renovations and additions at Dolly Ridge Elementary 
and the new Pizitz Middle School. He explained the needs that have been identified along 
with some that may be identified later. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to the construction loan duration of ten years, needs of the 
new Pizitz Middle School campus, traffic concerns along Dolly Ridge Road and Rocky 
Ridge Road and operational needs of the Board both present and future. 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 2 
 

 
 Mr. Boone gave an historical background of the City’s 3.15 mill ad valorem tax. 
 
 

SMALL CELL TECHNOLOGY 
 
 Mr. Downes gave a brief background on the development of the small cell 
technology ordinance that will be presented tonight for a vote by the Council.  He explained 
a late response he received from AT&T and noted that they will be present to advise the 
Council of their concerns. 
 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:35 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2018 

Page 1 
 

 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

DECEMBER 17, 2018 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Curry called the meeting to 
order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mayor Ashley C. Curry  

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor 

      Paul Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
 

Jim Cartledge, Vestavia Hills Chaplin, Vestavia Hills Chaplin, led the invocation followed 
by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Mrs. Cook announced the Safe Walk to School Committee will have another meeting on 
January 15, at noon, in the Executive Conference Room at City Hall. 

 Mr. Pierce stated that the Chamber Board meeting starts at 7:30 AM at the Chamber of 
Commerce office. 

 Mr. Weaver announced that the Planning and Zoning Commission met last Thursday and 
recommended some items that will move forward to Council soon. 

 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 None. 



City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2018 

Page 2 
 

 
COUNCILOR REPORTS 

 
 Mrs. The Safe Walks to School Committee will have another meeting on January 15 at 

noon in the Executive Conference Room at City Hall. 
 Mr. Pierce stated that the Chamber Board meeting starts at 7:30 at the Chamber. 
 Mr. Weaver announced that the Planning and Zoning Commission met last Thursday and 

recommended some items that will move forward to Council soon. 
 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 George Sawaya gave the financial reports for month ending October 2018. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 None. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2810 
 

Ordinance Number 2810 – Rezoning – 4517 Pine Tree Circle; Rezone From Vestavia Hills 
R-1 (Low Density Residential District) To VH O-1 (Office District); Mark 
Hancock, Hancock Construction, Owner   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2810 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Mrs. Cook. 
 
 Mr. Weaver gave the report from the Planning and Zoning meeting.  The request was 
discussed by the Commission and unanimously recommended for approval with a continuation 
of the transition of this area to commercial. 
 
 Justin Collier was present representing the owner.  He indicated they hope to start 
construction on the new building within 6 months if the use is approved. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about the proposed building. 
 
 Mr. Collier stated it will be professional office. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 



City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2018 

Page 3 
 

   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2811 
 

Ordinance Number 2811 – Conditional Use Approval – 2301 Old Columbiana Road; 
Conditional Use Approval For Outdoor Recreation; The Property Is 
Currently Zoned Vestavia Hills B-2 (General Business District) With 
Restrictions; Richard Pennino, (public hearing) 

 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2811 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Weaver. 
 
 The Mayor indicated that he has gotten calls and emails and there appears to be some 
confusion about the zoning and use of this property over the past several years.  He asked Mr. 
Boone to explain.   
 
 Mr. Boone gave a brief overview of the history of the property, which included the 
rezoning from Vestavia Hills R-2 zoning with a requested variance to build 30 homes on 60’ wide 
lots by way of a use variance.  When the BZA denied the request, the Jefferson County Circuit 
Court heard the case and authorized the owner to construct 32 homes, with certain requirements, 
including a 30’ buffer on all sides, except Columbiana Road, and a 7’ privacy fence.  For whatever 
reason, the property was never developed by the owner and was later sold to Over the Mountain 
Community Church.  The Church requested and obtained a rezoning of the property to 
Institutional.  He read the permissible uses allowed under the current zoning classification.  Later, 
Russell Polhemus purchased the property and operated a rehabilitation sports facility under 
Institutional zoning, which was listed as a permissible use under that zoning classification.  In 
2010, the City adopted a new zoning code that eliminated the operation of sports facilities from 
Institutional use.  This year, Mr. Rich Pennino approached the City, wanting to relocate his fitness 
facility to the property. At the time, he was advised a rezoning to B-2 would be required.  He 
requested the rezoning and was approved in February 2018.  When the property was rezoned, 
there were restrictive covenants that applied to the property and those were recorded. In October 
of this year, Mr. Pennino requested a conditional use variance and the Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended approval, with stipulations.  This request is now before the City 
Council for consideration. 
 
 Mr. Weaver gave the Planning and Zoning Commission report, which recommends 
approval, with the some stipulations that are detailed in the Resolution. The Commission listened 
to public comments for about one and a half hours, with a lot of points of interest being covered, 
including noise, privacy, outdoor lighting and more.  He stated that a full public hearing was held.  
The Commission’s recommendation stipulations were no unreasonable noise before 8 AM or after 
9 PM, Monday through Friday, or before 9 AM or after 5 PM on Saturdays; outdoor batting cages 
prohibited on premise; no amplified music outside of the building; any changes to outdoor lighting 
to be approved through Design Review Board. 
 



City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2018 

Page 4 
 

 Mr. Rich Pennino, owner, explained his request.  He stated that this is a family-owned 
business. He stated he is passionate about changing lives through fitness and some of his clients 
are in the audience tonight. He explained the various groups that work out at his facility.  He 
stated his clients would like to have the ability to train outdoors--most of which would be running 
outside.  He stated that his facility was voted one of the best cross-fit gyms in the State of 
Alabama.  He showed photos of the way the building looked before he bought the building and 
after.  When he requested the rezoning, he wasn’t aware that outdoor recreation was prohibited.  
There were already two running tracks on the property.  He showed the location of lighting that 
was already installed when he purchased the property.  He stated that he recently updated this 
lighting to LED.  He showed the location of the running track where he placed a 6’ privacy fence 
to replace the 4’ fence that he was approved by the Design Review Board.  He stated they seek 
approval to do running around the building any time of day or night.  He stated that he is currently 
leasing the fields next door to the property and controls the fields there.  He stated that the 
Commission recommended to not have any batting cages, but he has considered that 
recommendation from the Commission and asks that the City Council amend the Resolution to 
allow the batting cages. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked about the adjacent fields.  She asked him to explain outdoor sports that 
are currently played there.  
 
 Mr. Pennino stated that they already have the outdoor use of the fields under the 
Institutional zoning and explained some of the activities taking place there. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about the track at the adjacent fields he is renting.  Mr. Pennino stated 
they use those, but prefer to use all the tracks, including those on this property. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about special events.  Mr. Pennino stated that he conducted a fundraiser 
at their facility to raise money for an outreach organization and experienced more traffic than 
anticipated.  He stated that he learned from that event and, when the grand opening occurred, he 
followed the rules and there were no issues or complaints.  He stated that other entities were also 
using the fields during the weekend of the fundraiser, which compounded the negative aspects of 
the event.  At that time, he didn’t have leased control of the adjacent fields. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated he did get complaints about the fundraiser. 
 
 Mr. Weaver stated that this is not about whether cross-fit training is good or bad or the 
condition of the property. He stated this is a great neighborhood and he asked everyone to make 
an effort to strive for better communications and get along with each other. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
The following individuals spoke in opposition to the request: 
 

 Jeff Martinez, 2240 Jacobs Road; 
 David Cutchen, 2315 Old Columbiana Road; 

 



City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2018 

Page 5 
 

The following individuals spoke in favor of the request: 
 

 Brent Keith, 4221 Paxton Place; 
 John Henley, 1823 Mission Road, and owner of a business on Columbiana Road located 

adjacent the former location of Forge Fitness; 
 French McMillan, 2208 Jacobs Road. 

 
 Issues discussed included past actions of the building owner, altering of the detention 
pond, constructing running tracks and outdoor facilities without first obtaining the necessary 
approvals, replacement of previous light bulbs with LED, several unsuccessful attempts to 
redevelop the property and drainage issues.  
 
 Mr. Weaver stated there appeared to be no support among the Council to allow batting 
cages in the conditional use approval. 
 
 Comments included the need for this type of facility, use of the outdoors in any of these 
facilities, respectfulness of the members of the gym, uses and noises on other similar properties. 
 
 Mr. Brady explained about the corrections made in and around the detention pond.  He 
stated that the pond previously was not operating, because it had not been maintained by previous 
owners. When Mr. Pennino purchased and rezoned the property, one of the stipulations was that 
the pond be made operational again, to the City’s approval, and Mr. Pennino has fulfilled that 
requirement. 
 
 The Mayor asked about the lighting.  Mr. Brady stated that he was not aware of any 
lighting change. 
 
 Mr. Weaver asked whether, since this is a conditional use and there have been concerns 
about Mr. Pennino not following these stipulations, what happens if the owner violates this 
Ordinance and can the Ordinance be rescinded.  Mr. Boone stated that the Council can rescind 
the Ordinance. 
 
 The Mayor stated that if the Council approved an amendment to allow the batting cages, 
it would delay action on this item for another month. 
 
 Mr. Weaver read the stipulations within the Ordinance presented. 
 
 Matt Abbott, 1801 Glendmere Drive, asked what would be the procedure if the owner 
were to violate the Ordinance.  Mr. Boone explained.  *Mr. Boone reduced to writing clarifying 
remedies to violation of the Ordinance, in a letter dated December 18, 2018, a copy of which is 
marked as Exhibit A and attached to these minutes.*   
 
 There being no one else to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing. 
 



City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2018 

Page 6 
 

 Mrs. Cook asked about the conditions of the noise ordinance and how they compare to the 
stipulations of this Ordinance.  Mr. Downes gave the parameters of the Noise Ordinance.  
Discussion ensued. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that it is always difficult to locate a business adjacent to residential.  He 
stated the zoning ordinances are designed to protect residents and businesses.  He asked the 
business owner to respect the residents and asked the residents to respect the business.  He 
requested that they work together and respect each other. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked if there have been any prior noise violations or calls to the VHPD.  Chief 
Rary stated he would have to check the records to know this. 
 
 There being no further business, the Mayor called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
 Brian DeMarco, 2313 Old Columbiana Road, expressed a concern of traffic along Old 
Columbiana Road.  He asked about following up on a requested traffic study.  Mr. Brady 
explained they do have a new process and have been flooded with requests and are working on 
each one. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2812 
 

Ordinance Number 2812 – An Ordinance To Partner With The Coach Safely Foundation 
Pursuant To The Coach Safety Act, Also Known As Act Number 2018-496 As 
Adopted By The Alabama Legislature, 2018 Regular Session And 
Authorizing A Partnership Between The Coach Safely Foundation And The 
City Of Vestavia Hills Parks And Recreation Department    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2812 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 Brian Davis, Public Services Director, explained the previous program, which the City 
has had for several years through Alabama State University.  He explained that this program lost 
funding so, during this period, the City sent coaches to an alternative program through the Centers 
for Disease Control. The Coach Safely program allows the Park Board to partner with the Coach 
Safely Foundation so recreational leaders can have formal training.  He stated that the Park Board 
recommends the Council approve this program. 
 
 The Mayor commended the program.  
 
 Drew Ferguson, Coach Safely Foundation, stated that they are excited about this program 
and that state law mandates this training in every municipality having organized youth sports age 



City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2018 

Page 7 
 

14 and under.  He stated that this is a public health issue and their program maintains a registry 
of individuals who have had the course.  He commended the City for instituting an emergency 
action plan and beginning this new program.  He stated the program will educate parents regarding 
what is recommended, medically, when incidents occur in training and competition. 
 
 Mr. Weaver gave the following statements:   
 

 “I’m proud to be a part of a community that values safety education for the 
coaches and other people involved in our youth sports programs.  Youth coaches 
should have participant safety, particularly injury prevention and recognition, as 
their top priority. 
 
 The emotional, financial and time commitment parents make to allow their 
kids to be involved in youth sports is significant.  Sometimes the slightest deterrent 
can lead to a “no” when it comes to the decision on participation.  If we, as city 
leaders and youth coaches, allow misinformation or lack of education of coaches 
to be that deterrent, then we have failed the kids of our community and their 
families. 
 
 The Coach Safely Training Course will be the nationwide norm one day and 
Vestavia Hills will have been at the forefront of taking a proactive approach to not 
only preserving the Your Sports experience but enhancing it.” 

 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2813 
 

Ordinance Number 2813 – An Ordinance To Rescind Ordinance Number 2627 And Article 
XI, Section 8-281 Thru 8-293 Of The Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances 
Relating To Licenses And Regulation Of Transportation Network Companies 
(“TNC”)    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2813 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Head. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the City passed this Ordinance regulating TNC companies such 
as Uber and Lyft.  Since then, the State of Alabama enacted legislation that took that control away 
from municipalities to regulate TNCs, so the Ordinance should be rescinded because it is no 
longer in effect. 
 



City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2018 

Page 8 
 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2814 
 

Ordinance Number 2814 – An Ordinance To Adopt Regulations For Small Cell Technology 
Facilities In The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2814 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Head. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated this goes hand-in-hand with Ordinance Number 2815. He explained 
the new small cell technology allows utilities to piggyback on existing utility poles instead of 
erecting giant cell towers.  He stated this Ordinance would regulate these small cell utilities 
independently of the larger cell towers, which are regulated by the zoning code.  He stated the 
City has had a few requests made from utilities to install small cell technology on existing poles 
and regulations for this already exist in Mountain Brook, Hoover and Homewood.  He stated this 
Ordinance is a hybrid of ordinances passed by all three of these cities and has been recommended 
for approval by both Mr. Boone and the City’s outside counsel. 
 
 Terri Williams, representing AT&T Alabama, thanks the City and staff for the diligence 
of developing this draft Ordinance to allow implementation of the new technology.  She explained 
that this will eventually open the pathway for 5G deployment, but there is a lot that needs to be 
done before that happens. She stated that they have discussed the Ordinance with City 
representatives.  She stated that federal regulations are being developed to regulate how cities will 
handle this type of activity and that, in January, those federal rates and standards will go into 
effect.  Some of the rates in the proposed Ordinance are outside of the proposed federal standards.  
She asked that the verbiage be added to this Ordinance that the City will abide by any future 
regulations from the federal level. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Matt Hartley, 3775 River Hollow Run, Peachtree Corners, Georgia, representing Verizon 
Wireless, stated that Verizon Wireless needed time to further review the Ordinance to see how 
this would affect them, so he would provide his input at a later time. 
 
 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called 
for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 



City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2018 

Page 9 
 

 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2815 

 
Ordinance Number 2815 – An Ordinance To Establish A Fee Structure For Small Cell 

Technology Facilities In The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama As Established 
By Ordinance Number 2814   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2815 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5117 
 

Resolution Number 5117 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Agreement For Services With The Regional Planning Commission 
Of Greater Birmingham For An Apple Grant For “Vestavia Hills Traffic 
Operations Study Phase 1”    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5117 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Head. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated he has reviewed this Resolution to obtain a grant to study various 
intersections in the City, in depth, with the Council at previous meetings. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2816 
 

Ordinance Number 2816 – An Ordinance Confirming And Ratifying The Levy Of The 3.15 
Mill Ad Valorem Tax In The City For Public School Purposes Pursuant To 
Amendment No. 352 To The Constitution Of Alabama Of 1901 And A Special 
Election Held In The City On January 13, 1976 

 



City Council Minutes 
December 17, 2018 

Page 10 
 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2816 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 
Pierce. 

 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution ratifies a 3.15 mill property tax, previously 
dedicated to the Board of Education, for operational use. This is not a new tax, but an existing tax 
already dedicated to school board operations. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no further business, the 
Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented at a 
public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on January 14, 2019, at 6:00 PM. 

 None. 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 Donald Harwell, 1853 Willoughby Road, gave an update of what happened at the meeting, 
today, at the BJCTA meeting.  He explained the Director stepped down and that the BJCTA Board 
hired Frankie Martin to fill the Director’s job for a period of 6 months.  He stated that Mr. Martin 
comes with a great resume. He stated they are in the process of looking for a permanent director. 
 
 At 7:56 PM, Mr. Weaver made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 7:57 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - December 17, 2018 Minutes



Exhibit A - December 17, 2018 Minutes



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5119 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR RAYBURN HOSPITALITY VESTAVIA HILLS 
LLC D/B/A MUGSHOTS GRILL AND BAR 
VESTAVIA HILLS; DERRICK CLIFTON RAYBURN, 
EXECUTIVES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves the 

alcohol license for Rayburn Hospitality Vestavia Hills LLC d/b/a Mugshots Grill and Bar 

Vestavia Hills, located at 1919 Kentucky Avenue, Suite 101, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for 

the On-Premise sale of 020 - Restaurant Retail Liquor; Derrick Clifton Rayburn, executive. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5119



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5119



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5119



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5119



Ordinance Number 2825 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2825 
 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND ENACTING SUPPLEMENT III 
FOR THE VESTAVIA HILLS CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
REPUBLISHED 2013 PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CERTAIN 
ORDINANCES NOT INCLUDED THEREIN; PROVIDING A 
PENALTY FOR THE VIOLATION THEREOF; AND PROVIDING 
WHEN SUCH SUPPLEMENTS AND THIS ORDINANCE SHALL 
BECOME EFFECTIVE. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 

HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Supplement No. 3 to the Code entitled "Vestavia Hills Code of Ordinances, 

Republished 2013," is adopted. 

Section 2.  All Ordinances of a general and permanent nature enacted on or before 

June 11, 2018, and in conflict with the Ordinances included in the supplement or recognized 

and continued in force by reference therein, are repealed. 

Section 3. The repeal provided for in Section 2 hereof shall not be construed to revive 

any Ordinance or part thereof that has been repealed by a subsequent Ordinance that is 

repealed by this Ordinance. 

Section 4. Unless another penalty is expressly provided, every person convicted of a 

violation of any provision of the Supplement or any Ordinance, rule or regulation adopted or 

issued in pursuance thereof shall be punished by a fine of not less than $1.00 nor more than 

$500.00 or by imprisonment at hard labor for not exceeding six months or by both such fine 

and imprisonment. Each act of violation and each day upon which any such violation shall 

continue or occur shall constitute a separate offense.  In addition to the penalty prescribed 



Ordinance Number 2825 
Page 2 

 
above, the City may pursue other remedies such as abatement of nuisances, injunctive relief 

and revocation of licenses or permits.  

Section 5.  The Ordinances included in this Supplement shall be deemed to be 

incorporated in the Code, so that reference to the Code includes such Ordinances. 

Section 6. Ordinances adopted after June 11, 2018 that amend or refer to Ordinances 

that have been included in the supplement shall be construed as if they amend or refer to like 

provisions of the Code. 

Section 7. This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption, approval and 

publication as required by law. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this 14th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2825 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2825 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 14th day of January, 2019 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia Hills 
Civic Center and Vestavia Hills New Merkel Houser this the ______ day of 
______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2817 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2817 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY VESTAVIA HILLS B-2 TO 
VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills B-2 (general 

business district) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential district):  

3791 Poe Drive;  
That Part of Lot 1, Overton Village Resurvey  

which lies in Vestavia Hills Corporate Limits; 
Overton Condos, LLC, Marc Perlman, Owner(s) 

 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2817 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2817 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2817 
Page 3 

 
 
 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2817



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2817



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     DECEMBER 13, 2018

CASE: P-1218-55

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills B-2 to Vestavia Hills R-9

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3791 Poe Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: Marc Perlman with Overton Condos, LLC

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking to rezone 3791 Poe Drive from B-2
to R-9. The applicant would like to construct a townhouse development, building 5 
townhomes on the property as a companion piece to a Mountain Brook Condo project 
to the rear. Both projects would share a drive, allowing access to both Poe and 
Fairhaven Drives. Proposed setbacks are Front- 12’, rear- 20’, Sides- 0’. There is an 
11.95’ separation between townhomes and adjacent property to the south. All current 
easements will remain.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation: No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval for 3791 Poe Drive
from Vestavia Hills B-2 to Vestavia Hills R-9. Second was by Ms. Cobb. Motion was carried on 
a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2817



2

Mr. Romeo – yes Ms. Cobb – yes
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2817



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2817



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2817



Ordinance Number 2818 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2818 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY VESTAVIA HILLS INST TO 
VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills INST (institutional 

district) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential district):  

3771 and 3783 Fairhaven Drive 
Lots 24, 25, 31 and 32, Block 1, Glass Addition to New Merkle 

Overton Investments, LLC, Owner(s) 
 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2818 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2818 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2818 
Page 3 

 



Exhibit - Ordinance 2818



Exhibit - Ordinance 2818



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date: DECEMBER 13, 2018

CASE: P-1218-53

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills INST to Vestavia Hills R-9

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3771 & 3783 Fairhaven Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: Overton Investments, LLC

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking to rezone 3771 and 3783 Fairhaven
Drive from INST to R-9. The applicant would like to build 3 new townhomes on
3771 Fairhaven Drive and also build 4 luxury townhomes on 3783 Fairhaven Drive.
The setbacks for both properties would be 30’ in the front, 25’ in the rear and 5’ on
the sides. All current easements will remain and the property would be re-platted at
the conclusion of zoning.

CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The Community Plan call for
Institutional Uses for these two sites, however, this was written when the assisted care
facility owned the lots.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation: No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request.

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval for 3771 & 3783 
Fairhaven Drive from Vestavia Hills INST to Vestavia Hills R-9. Second was by Mr. House.
Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Exhibit - Ordinance 2818



Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Ms. Cobb – yes
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance 2818



Exhibit - Ordinance 2818



E
xh

ib
it 

- O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

81
8



E
xh

ib
it 

- O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

81
8



E
xh

ib
it 

- O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

81
8



E
xh

ib
it 

- O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

81
8



E
xh

ib
it 

- O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

81
8



E
xh

ib
it 

- O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

81
8



E
xh

ib
it 

- O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

81
8



Exhibit - Ordinance 2818



Exhibit - Ordinance 2818



Ordinance Number 2819 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2819 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 8th day of October, 2018, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3421 Coventry Drive, 
Lot 6, Block 2, Coventry 1st and 2nd Sector 

Barbara French, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2819 
Page 2 

 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2819 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2819 
Page 3 

 

 



 
Annexation Committee Petition Review 

 
Property: ________________________________________________________ 
 
Owners:  ________________________________________________________ 

   
Date: _______________________ 
 
1. The property in question is contiguous to the city limits. 

Yes _______    No ________  Comments:___________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________. 

 
2. The land use of the petitioned property is compatible with land use in the area. 

Yes ________    No ________  Comments: __________________________ 
______________________________________________________________ 

 
3. The property being petitioned is noted in the September 2006 Annexation Policy 

Task Force Report as an area of interest to the city for annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
4. Streets and drainage structures are in substantial compliance with city regulations 

and building codes, and in good condition at the time of the annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
5. Individual household has a Jefferson or Shelby County Tax Assessor minimum 

market value of __________________.  Meets city criteria: Yes ____  No ____ 
Comment:_______________________________________________________ 

 
6. This street has fewer than 100% of the individual properties within the limits of 

the city 
 Yes _______    No _______   

Number of total homes ___________  Number in city ____________________  
 
7. Fire dues pursuant to Act #604 of the State of Alabama, and any other 

assessments on the property shall be the responsibility of the property owner, and 
their payment proven to the city. 

 Agreed to by petitioner:  Yes _______  No _______  Comment_______________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

3421 Coventry Drive

Barbara French

8.29.18

$360,000

3421 Coventry Drive
 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2819

16

18



Property: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
8. A non-refundable administrative fee of $100 has been paid to the city.  

Furthermore, voluntary contributions, including an application fee, of 
$___________ will be paid to offset costs associated with the annexation. 

 Yes _______    No _______  Comment _________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
9. Property is free and clear of hazardous waste, debris and materials. 
 Yes _______  No _______   Comment __________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
10. Are there any concerns from city departments? 
 Yes  _______  No _______  Comments: _________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________
 __________________________________________________________________ 

 
      11. Information on children:  Number in family _____________; Plan to enroll in VH 
 schools  Yes _______  No _________   Comments: ________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
     Other Comments: ______________________________________________________  
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
George Pierce 
Chairman 

3421 Coventry Drive

0 children
not applicable

Kimberly B. Cook
Acting Chair

3421 Coventry Drive
 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2819



 
Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2819



 
Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2819



 
Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2819



 
Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2819



 
Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2819



Ordinance Number 2820 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2820 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential district):  

3421 Coventry Drive 
Lot 6, Block 2, Coventry 1st and 2nd Sector; 

Barbara French, Owner(s) 
 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2820 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2820 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2820 
Page 3 

 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date: DECEMBER 13, 2018 
 

• CASE: P-1218-50 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 
 

• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3421 Coventry Drive 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Barbara C. French 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
10/8/18 with the passage of Ordinance 2797. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning. 

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation 

 
2. City Engineer Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 
 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 
 
 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval for 3421 Coventry 
Drive from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2. Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Gilchrist – yes           
Mr. Romeo – yes    Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. House – yes    Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 

 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2820



E
xh

ib
it 

- 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 N
o.

 2
82

0



Ordinance Number 2821 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2821 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 8th day of October, 2018, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3531 Valley Circle 
Lot 6, Block 1, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add 

Alan and Patricia Foster, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2821 
Page 2 

 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2821 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2821 
Page 3 

 

 



 
Annexation Committee Petition Review 

 
Property: ________________________________________________________ 
 
Owners:  ________________________________________________________ 

   
Date: _______________________ 
 
1. The property in question is contiguous to the city limits. 

Yes _______    No ________  Comments:___________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________. 

 
2. The land use of the petitioned property is compatible with land use in the area. 

Yes ________    No ________  Comments: __________________________ 
______________________________________________________________ 

 
3. The property being petitioned is noted in the September 2006 Annexation Policy 

Task Force Report as an area of interest to the city for annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
4. Streets and drainage structures are in substantial compliance with city regulations 

and building codes, and in good condition at the time of the annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
5. Individual household has a Jefferson or Shelby County Tax Assessor minimum 

market value of __________________.  Meets city criteria: Yes ____  No ____ 
Comment:_______________________________________________________ 

 
6. This street has fewer than 100% of the individual properties within the limits of 

the city 
 Yes _______    No _______   

Number of total homes ___________  Number in city ____________________  
 
7. Fire dues pursuant to Act #604 of the State of Alabama, and any other 

assessments on the property shall be the responsibility of the property owner, and 
their payment proven to the city. 

 Agreed to by petitioner:  Yes _______  No _______  Comment_______________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

3531 Valley Circle

Alan and Patricia Foster

8.29.18

$205,700

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Property: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
8. A non-refundable administrative fee of $100 has been paid to the city.  

Furthermore, voluntary contributions, including an application fee, of 
$___________ will be paid to offset costs associated with the annexation. 

 Yes _______    No _______  Comment _________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
9. Property is free and clear of hazardous waste, debris and materials. 
 Yes _______  No _______   Comment __________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
10. Are there any concerns from city departments? 
 Yes  _______  No _______  Comments: _________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________
 __________________________________________________________________ 

 
      11. Information on children:  Number in family _____________; Plan to enroll in VH 
 schools  Yes _______  No _________   Comments: ________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
     Other Comments: ______________________________________________________  
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
George Pierce 
Chairman 

3531 Valley Circle

0 children
not applicable

Kimberly B. Cook
Acting Chair

Nothing significant

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Ordinance Number 2822 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2822 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential district):  

3531 Valley Circle 
Lot 6, Block 1, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; 

Alan and Patricia Foster, Owner(s) 
 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2822 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2822 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2822 
Page 3 

 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date: DECEMBER 13, 2018 
 

• CASE: P-1218-51 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 
 

• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3531 Valley Circle 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Alan & Patricia Foster 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
10/8/18 with the passage of Ordinance 2798. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning. 

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation 

 
2. City Engineer Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 
 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 
 
 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval for 3531 Valley 
Circle from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2. Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Gilchrist – yes           
Mr. Romeo – yes    Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. House – yes    Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 

 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2822



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2822



Ordinance Number 2823 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2823 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 8th day of October, 2018, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2532 Skyland Drive 
Lot 8, Block 2, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add 

Jason and Laura Sparks, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2823 
Page 2 

 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2823 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2823 
Page 3 

 

 



 
Annexation Committee Petition Review 

 
Property: ________________________________________________________ 
 
Owners:  ________________________________________________________ 

   
Date: _______________________ 
 
1. The property in question is contiguous to the city limits. 

Yes _______    No ________  Comments:___________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________. 

 
2. The land use of the petitioned property is compatible with land use in the area. 

Yes ________    No ________  Comments: __________________________ 
______________________________________________________________ 

 
3. The property being petitioned is noted in the September 2006 Annexation Policy 

Task Force Report as an area of interest to the city for annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
4. Streets and drainage structures are in substantial compliance with city regulations 

and building codes, and in good condition at the time of the annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
5. Individual household has a Jefferson or Shelby County Tax Assessor minimum 

market value of __________________.  Meets city criteria: Yes ____  No ____ 
Comment:_______________________________________________________ 

 
6. This street has fewer than 100% of the individual properties within the limits of 

the city 
 Yes _______    No _______   

Number of total homes ___________  Number in city ____________________  
 
7. Fire dues pursuant to Act #604 of the State of Alabama, and any other 

assessments on the property shall be the responsibility of the property owner, and 
their payment proven to the city. 

 Agreed to by petitioner:  Yes _______  No _______  Comment_______________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

2532 Skyland Drive

Jason Sparks

8.29.18

See Engineering Report.

$204,600
Though this property falls short of the City’s median property value, similar, 
adjacent properties have sold recently in the median range.

13 5

2532 Skyland Drive

$211,100



Property: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
8. A non-refundable administrative fee of $100 has been paid to the city.  

Furthermore, voluntary contributions, including an application fee, of 
$___________ will be paid to offset costs associated with the annexation. 

 Yes _______    No _______  Comment _________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
9. Property is free and clear of hazardous waste, debris and materials. 
 Yes _______  No _______   Comment __________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
10. Are there any concerns from city departments? 
 Yes  _______  No _______  Comments: _________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________
 __________________________________________________________________ 

 
      11. Information on children:  Number in family _____________; Plan to enroll in VH 
 schools  Yes _______  No _________   Comments: ________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
     Other Comments: ______________________________________________________  
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
George Pierce 
Chairman 

2532 Skyland Drive

See Engineering department report of concerns regarding storm drain pipe. City Engineer stated Jefferson County is 
willing to partner with the City to replace the public pipe. Property owner acknowledged he was aware the private pipe 
would need to be repaired at the same time as the public pipe repair. The City Engineer said this is not currently causing a 
problem, but would need to be fixed. Committee recommends the pipe repair would be a contingency of the annexation.

1 child

Kimberly Cook, Acting Chairman

2532 Skyland Drive



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Christopher Brady
Sent: Thursday, August 23, 2018 12:08 PM
To: Rebecca Leavings; George Pierce
Cc: Jeff Downes
Subject: RE: Annexation Committee Agenda
Attachments: 2532 Skyland Drive_survey markup.pdf; skyland_pics.pdf

Fyi 
I wanted to provide an update on 2532 Skyland… 
 
I met Wed, 8/22, with Mr. Sparks to discuss drainage pipe concerns on his property and within the roadway at the front 
of this property.  I have also initiated discussions with Jefferson County, but have not yet received input from their 
review. 
 
The attached sketch and pictures provide an overview of the rusted drainage pipe.  There is approximately 100 LF of 30” 
pipe on his property that has substantially deteriorated; the bottom of the pipe is mostly rusted away.  The pipe within 
the roadway right‐of‐way, approximately 60 LF of 30” pipe, and another 35 LF of 15”, has little to no bottom remaining.  
 
There are no surface concerns evident yet; no sinkholes or subsidence in the roadway.  Mr. Sparks’ driveway has settling 
and cracking, but no visible hazard or immediate concerns. 
 
The property across the street, as well as numerous neighboring properties, are already within the City, so there is pre‐
existing City maintenance in this area.  However, this was not a previously identified pipe replacement project. 
 
Mr.Sparks’ family has owned the property for 10+ years and claims to have not noted any issues in past.  His mom also 
met with us on site and provided additional background on the property and noting improvements they have done to 
the property since owning. 
 
Mr. Sparks stated a willingness to consider investing in improvements, and is awaiting additional guidance from the City 
and/or County.  He intends to attend the Committee meeting on 29th and address this concern in any discussion as 
needed. 
 

 
 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Department of Public Services 
P 205 978 0150 | vhal.org 
City of Vestavia Hills 

   
 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



 

 

 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Ordinance Number 2824 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2824 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential district):  

2532 Skyland Drive 
Lot 8, Block 2, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; 

Jason and Laura Sparks, Owner(s) 
 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2824 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2824 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2824 
Page 3 

 
 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date: DECEMBER 13, 2018 
 

• CASE: P-1218-52 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 
 

• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2532 Skyland Drive 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Jason Sparks 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
10/8/18 with the passage of Ordinance 2799. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning. 

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation 

 
2. City Engineer Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 
 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 
 
 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval for 2532 Skyland 
Drive from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2. Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Gilchrist – yes           
Mr. Romeo – yes    Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. House – yes    Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 

 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2824



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2824



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2824



E
xh

ib
it 

- 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 N
o.

 2
82

4


	2019_0114CC_A
	2018_1210CC_M
	2018_1217CC_work session
	2018_1217CC_M
	Resolution 5119
	Ordinance 2825
	Ordinance 2817
	Ordinance 2818
	Ordinance 2819
	Ordinance 2820
	Ordinance 2821
	Ordinance 2822
	Ordinance 2823
	Ordinance 2824



